
Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, January 11, 2022 @ 6:30 PM 
                      In-person Meeting @ 10615 Green Mountain Falls Rd 

Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 
 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road, Green Mountain Falls, Colorado 80819 

OR JOIN ZOOM MEETING: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86509096315?pwd=T0VBMGtSTlIwWXczS2JLQzlCRmVzZz09 

Meeting ID: 865 0909 6315; Passcode: 825166 

 

TIME  ITEM  
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 
6:30 1. CALL TO ORDER  

 2. AUDIO CHECK  

 3. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA  

 4. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes 

Action 
Recommended 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT**  

 6. NEW BUSINESS  

 a.  012022-01 – 11120 Falls Ave. – Deck Replace  

 b.  Nominating officers for 2022  

 7. OLD BUSINESS  

 a.  Discussion – Code Rewrite Status 
No Action 
Necessary 

 8. OTHER BUSINESS  

 9. Adjournment  
 

**Register for public comment by 4:00 PM the day of the meeting: planner@gmfco.us 
 

Planning Commission Members: 
Todd Dixon, Chair  
Lamar Matthews, Commissioner 
Sean Ives, Commissioner 
Gregory Williamson, Vice Chair 
Paul Yingling, Commissioner  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86509096315?pwd=T0VBMGtSTlIwWXczS2JLQzlCRmVzZz09
mailto:planner@gmfco.us
mailto:planner@gmfco.us


Commissioners Present: Todd Dixon, Sean Ives, Lamar Matthews, Gregory Williamson, Paul Yingling

Commissioners Absent:

Ex Oficio Member: Mayor Jane Newberry - not present

Board of Trustees Liaison:

GMF Staff: Nate Scott

Agenda Item Motion/Discussion M/S TD SI LM GW PY JN

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL Call to order at 6:30pm

2. AUDIO CHECK Audio check done successfully.

3. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, &
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA

Moved that the agenda be approved with the
address change, 10680 Florence, on item 6.a.
All ayes. Motion passed - 5/0

GW/LM A A A A A

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- November
9, 2021 Regular Meeting

All ayes. Motion passed - 5/0 PY/LM A A A A A

5. PUBLIC COMMENT No public comments registered.

6. NEW BUSINESS

a. DEC2021-01 – 10690 Florence
Ave. – Garage Roof and Garage
Deck Replace

NS - Applicant, Seever, present at town hall. He
wants to replace the roof and deck. Application has
been received and paid for. Will be submitted to
PPRegional. Contractor must apply for a town
business license. Color palette in earth tones as
recommended. All materials are approved. Meets
setbacks. In hill overlay zone, staff have no concerns.
Setbacks covered in nonconforming development of

PY/LM A A A A A

Page 1



code. No change in garage footprint. Status tracked
through PP building.

PY - PC does not do roof approvals? NS - All in one
project falls in the PC purview. Applicant - I have to
take the deck off to get to the roof.

Applicant - Nothing to add beyond the letter of
explanation. Putting it back to the way it was and
now has to conform to code.

Moved to approve the project at 10680 Florence
contingent on the contractor getting a business
license with the town.
All ayes. Motion passed - 5/0

7. OLD BUSINESS

a. Discussion – Code Rewrite –
Draft Installment #1 and next
steps

NS - Met with Nina Williams, attorney. Reminder
about the process which was started a year ago.
When there was a full-time planner and intern, the
town staff was going to have more contributions to
the rewrite. Timeline has been pushed back. See
attached for proposed timeline. Attachment will be
BCCd to PC members for feedback. Reply to NS with
feedback by Dec 31. He will send it to Nina. Jan 11
meeting not planned for Nina to be there.   Jan 25
work session planned and should include Installment
#2.  PowerPoint will be used for installments #2 and
#3 based on her drafts and will include main change
points. Public will be invited to comment at Feb 8
meeting. Plan is to present the draft to the Board on
Mar 1. Concept is to propose codes that make sense
for GMF.

NS - Does Jan 25 work for everyone? LM can’t make
it but does not want to slow up progress. TD - Prefer

Page 2



Town of Green Mountain Falls
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

Zoom Virtual Meeting
Tuesday, April 14, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.

a separate PC work session. GW - agree with a
separate work session. NS - LM should have time to
review and include comments into the meeting. TD -
Would like members physically present for the work
session.

8. OTHER BUSINESS TD - PC will continue to use Zoom for the time being.
If funding issues arise, MS teams can be used. PC
committee elections will be held at the January
meeting. TD announced he will be running for mayor
and will not be available to chair next year.

9. ADJOURNMENT Adjourn at 7:02pm

Page 2



 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Staff 

  

Date: January 6, 2022 

Re: 012022-01 - Architectural and Zoning Application for a new deck at 11120 Falls Ave. 

 

Background 

The applicant Shobie Spear of Colorado Custom Built, on behalf of property owners Robert and Carol 
Korzekwa, is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration for a new deck permit at the subject address: 
11120 Falls Ave. The application was received and paid for on December 30, 2021.  The applicant paid for a 
business license on January 3, 2022.  The construction plan has been submitted to Pikes Peak Regional Building 
Dept. for their review.   
Planning Commission Recommended Actions: 

• Review proposed project for compliance with Green Mountain Falls Zoning and Land Use Code. 
• Approve, approve subject to conditions, or disapprove. 

 
Project Summary 
 
 The purpose of the project at 11120 Falls Ave is to remove and replace an existing deck that does not 
meet structural codes or standards and to add 300sf of usable outdoor space (deck plus attached sunroom). The 
existing deck will need to be removed from the house and taken away. The deck will be rebuilt using 
appropriate code qualified materials for outdoor construction. The decking material will be a Trex Composite 
Decking material (Toasted Sand Color) and the railing will be black hog wire paneling with a “cocktail topper”. 
The covering over a portion of the deck will match the appearance of the existing house. 
 
The footprint is slightly larger than the deck being replaced, but does not protrude towards the side property 
lines further than the existing house walls.   

Discussion 

The electronic file maintained by Town Hall, Official Town Zoning Map 2019, shows the Zone District as R-1 
and the El Paso County Assessor’s Office show parcel ID 8308211003 with an area of 7,305 sq. feet.  
Therefore, zoning is: 

16-305 R-1 5,000 Single-Family Residential District, within designated Hillside Overlay Zone. 
Setback requirements:  

a. Front, fifteen (15) feet;  
b. Side, five (5) feet; and  
c. Rear, ten (10) feet.  

 



 
Sec. 16-705. - Building permits; architectural review (attached) 
The Zoning Code §16-705(d)(2) – at a minimum, the following specific criteria shall be considered by the 
Planning Commission: 
a. Architectural compatibility; 
b. Bulk of the proposed building or structure in relation to surrounding buildings and land; 
c. Vehicular access and parking; 
d. Pedestrian access; and 
e. Relation to existing and future open space. 
 
The language for architectural review is couched as policy recommendation with vague 
standards: nevertheless, it does state the advisory body shall restrict its consideration in each 
case to the effect of the proposed construction on the health, safety, morals, and general welfare 
of the Town. 
 
Sec. 16-712. - Development plan requirements (w/ notes specific to this project).  
 
(1) The location, height, and dimensions of each existing and proposed structure in the development area and the uses to 
be contained therein.  (included in structural and site plans – does not exceed max height limit or existing house 
height) 
(2) The proper building setbacks and building area with reference to property lines, highways, or street rights-of-way; 
(Per applicant: We were able to track the site off of the location of electrical poles with markers on one side. And 
the neighbor to the east had recently had their property line marked so we were able to utilize those for our 
measurements.) 
(3) The location and surfaces of all parking areas and the exact number of parking spaces;  N/A 
(4) The location of watercourses and other natural historic features;  N/A 
(5) The location of all pedestrian walks, malls, recreation, and other open spaces; N/A 
(6) The location, number, height, and square footage of freestanding identification signs; N/A 
(7) The location, height, size, and orientation of any required light standards; N/A 
(8) The location of all permanent accesses from publicly dedicated streets, roads, or highways; N/A 
(9) The location, overlain on contours for the area, of all roadways, walkways, bridges, culverts, drainage easements, 
existing or contemplated, and green belts; N/A 
(10) The location of all footpaths, traffic islands, traffic devices and driveways, indicating the pedestrian and vehicular 
movement and control; N/A 
(11) The stages, if appropriate, in which the project will be developed; and   N/A 
(12) A vicinity map to locate the development in relation to the community.  (see location overview) 
(Ord. 97-01)   
 
Sec. 16-712. - HO Hillside Overlay Zone; Sec. 16-714. - Hillside Overlay Zone requirements 
 
Due to the minimal soil disturbance and overall scope of this project, staff has no concerns about this project 
within the Hillside Overlay Zone.   
 
Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of this project. 
 
 





12/30/21 $128.31 x

x
x
x



____________________________________________________
1023 Bonfoy Ave

Colorado Springs CO, 80909
719-406-5958

ColoradoCustomBuilt@gmail.com

December 28th, 2021

To Whom it may concern,

The purpose of the project at 11120 Falls ave is to remove and replace an

existing deck that does not meet structural codes or standards and to add

300sf of usable outdoor space. The existing deck will need to be removed from

the house and taken away. The deck will be rebuilt using appropriate code

qualified materials for outdoor construction. The decking material will be a

Trex Composite Decking material (Toasted Sand Color) and the railing will be

black hog wire paneling with a “cocktail topper”. The covering over a portion

of the deck will match the appearance of the existing house.

Thank you for your consideration of this project to the Green Mountain Falls

Area.

Sincerely,

Shobie Spear

















 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA MEMO 

 

DATE: 01.07.2022 ITEM 6.A. SUBJECT: Annual PC Officer Election 

Prepared by: Nate Scott, Town Clerk 

 
 
Background: 
Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 2-296, Rules of Procedure, each board, committee and commission shall 
appoint a chair and vice-chair annually during the first meeting of each calendar year. Each board, 
committee and commission shall appoint a secretary who may be a non-member (or) who is an employee 
of the Town.  
 
Discussion: 
 
Todd Dixon has announced that he plans to run for Mayor, so may be unable to complete the duties of a 
Planning Commission officer.  If Nancy Dixon does not want to be secretary any longer, I am willing to 
perform those duties until the Town is able to hire to fill the Planning vacancy.   
 
Recommended Action:  
The Planning Commission should select a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary.  It should also consider alternate 
members (up to three) or start recruiting other regular commissioners, especially considering an impending 
vacancy should Mr. Dixon be elected Mayor or any other Commissioner(s) be elected as Trustee.   
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to appoint {First Name, Last Name} as Chair of Planning Commission. 
I move to appoint {First Name, Last Name} as Vice-Chair of Planning Commission. 
I move to appoint {First Name, Last Name} as Secretary of Planning Commission. 
I move to recommend to the Board of Trustees {First Name, Last Name} as an alternate member to the 
Planning Commission.   
 
 

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH2ADPE_ARTXIVBOCOCO_S2-296OFPO


 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA MEMO 

 

DATE: 01.07.2022 ITEM 7.A. SUBJECT: Land Use Code Rewrite 

Prepared by: Nate Scott, Town Clerk 

 
 
Background: 
 
Chair Dixon, Manager Frank, and I met with Nina Williams last week and: 

1. Ms. Williams made it clear that she is running out of budgeted time for her work.   
2. Chair Dixon and Clerk Scott have provided feedback to Ms. Williams that, as of Jan. 5, has not been 

considered by Ms. Williams. 
3. Chair Dixon and Ms. Williams plan to meet on the feedback on Installment #1 this week. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Planning Commission should discuss next steps:  how to keep the rewrite on track, efficiently, and without 
the need for extra funding.  I don’t want to run out of Ms. Williams’ time without getting a final draft of all 
installments. 
 
Recommended Action:  
 
My recommendation is to: 

1. Have Ms. Williams complete the entire rewrite from her perspective, as she is basing it on best 
practices gained from legal knowledge, previous GMF community feedback, and experiences of 
other similar communities.   

2. Once we have her final draft of all installments, staff and Planning Commission can review it as a 
whole and suggest any changes based on the Town’s unique needs and circumstances.   

3. Those changes can then be reviewed by Town attorneys for legality. 
4. PC votes on a final draft before recommending a final draft to the Board of Trustees. 

 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Not sure if we need a formal action, but Commissioners and staff should come to a consensus about next 
steps.   
 
 


	1 2022-01-11 PC Agenda
	4 2021- December 14 - PC Meeting Minutes
	6a 11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Application Packet
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Application.pdf
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - LOE
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Site Location
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Site Plan - With Dims
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Decking Example
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Railing Example
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck - Architectural and Structural Plans
	11120 Falls Ave - Deck Attachment Sheet

	6b 2022-01-11 PC Memo - Officer Election
	7 2022-01-11 PC Memo - Code Rewrite

